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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability. Its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries (hereinafter the subsidiaries together
with the Company are collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are engaged in the manufacture of laminates,
copper foil, glass fabric, glass yarn, bleached kraft paper,

printed circuit boards and chemicals.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

During the period, the directors resolved to change the
Company’s financial year end from 31 March to 31
December so that the financial year end of the Company
will coincide with those of its subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The financial statements for the current period cover the
9 month period ended 31 December 2002. The
corresponding amounts shown for the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated cash flow statement and related notes cover
a 12 month period from 1 April 2001 to 31 March 2002
and therefore may not be comparable with amounts shown

for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE—#MA—AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

3

RMHTREETEHELER

In the current period, the Group has adopted, for the first RABE NEB s RRABBSE
time, a number of new and revised Statements of Standard MAEEN 2 ZIEF MBI
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong EBER ([GH2ER]) ML FR
Society of Accountants. The adoption of these new and IR e ERERASE g

revised SSAPs has led to a number of changes in the
Group's accounting policies. The revised accounting policies
are set out in note 4. In addition, the adoption of these
SSAPs has resulted in a change in the format of
presentation of the cash flow statement and inclusion of
a statement of changes in equity but has had no material
effect on the results for the current or prior accounting
periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is

required.

Foreign currencies

SSAP 11 (Revised) “Foreign currency translation” has
eliminated the choice of translating the income statements
of overseas subsidiaries at the closing rate for the period
which was previously followed by the Group. They are
now required to be translated at an average rate. This
change in accounting policy has not had any material effect

on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.

Cash flow statements

Under SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash flow statements”, cash
flows are classified under three headings — operating,
investing and financing, rather than the previous five
headings. Cash flows arising from taxes on income are
classified as operating activities, unless they can be
separately identified with investing or financing activities.
In addition, the amounts presented for cash and cash
equivalents have been amended to exclude trust receipt
loans amounting HK$6,056,000 that are financing in
nature. The re-definition of cash and cash equivalents has
resulted in a restatement of the comparative amounts
shown in the consolidated cash flow statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —ZEE —#FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HI- R

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF 3. BAMIRREITESFEKER
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (continued) (%)

Employee benefits EEEF

SSAP 34 “Employee benefits” introduces measurement S EAEMF[EEEN]IMEER
rules for employee benefits, including retirement benefit M (BRERKENGTE) GTEER
plans. Because the Group participates only in defined Ale BRAREER 2MAERFERAK
contribution retirement benefit schemes, the adoption of BAGFT &) MR e 5T E R F 34510
SSAP 34 has not had any material impact on the financial ANEMBERMRBELERMERTE -
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTHE

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation
of investment properties, and in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to the balance sheet date.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
an accounting period are included in the consolidated
income statement from, or up to, their effective dates of

acquisition or disposal as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any impairment loss. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —ZEE —#MF—HAF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary

at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged to
the income statement at the time of disposal of the
relevant subsidiary or at such time as the goodwill is

determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 April 2001 s
recognised as an asset and amortised on a straight line
basis over its useful economic life of not more than twenty

years.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition over

the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill is presented as a deduction from assets.
To the extent that such negative goodwill is attributable
to losses or expenses anticipated at the date of acquisition,
it is released to income in the period in which those losses
or expenses arise. The remaining negative goodwill is
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining average useful life of the identifiable acquired
depreciable assets. To the extent that such negative
goodwill exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired
identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognised as income

immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential and any rental income

therefrom is negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market
values based on annual professional valuations at the
balance sheet date. Any surplus or deficit arising on
valuation of investment properties is credited or charged
to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the
balance in the reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit in
which case the excess of the deficit over the balance in
the investment property revaluation reserve will be charged
to the income statement. Where a deficit had previously
been charged to the income statement and a revaluation
surplus subsequently arises, the surplus is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the deficit previously

charged.

No depreciation or amortisation is provided on investment
properties which are held under leases or land use rights
which have remaining terms, including any renewable

period, of more than twenty years.

On disposal of an investment property, any balance in the
investment property revaluation reserve which is
attributable to the disposed property is credited to the

income statement.

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less depreciation and amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —ZEE —#MF—HAF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other properties, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of land in Hong Kong is amortised on a straight
line basis over the unexpired term of the relevant lease,
including the renewable period. The cost of land use rights
in other parts of the PRC is amortised on a straight line
basis over the period for which the relevant land use rights
have been granted to the Group. The cost of buildings is
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 25
years on a straight line basis by equal annual instalments.

Properties, plant and equipment under construction are
stated at cost. No depreciation or amortisation is provided
until construction is complete and the assets are put into

use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost (less
estimated residual value, if any) of other properties, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements iER Ok E$3
Plant and machinery = K 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment E - EERE

Motor vehicles RE

In previous years, certain plant and machinery was
depreciated at 20% per annum. With effect from 1 April
2002, these plant and equipment are to be depreciated at
10% per annum, which reflects the Group’s previous
experience of the useful lives of its assets. On the other
hand, certain plant and equipment which were previously
depreciated at 10% per annum are to be depreciated at
20% per annum with effect from 1 April 2002. The effect
of these changes in depreciation rates is to decrease the
depreciation charge for the period by HK$5,286,000.

Gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
the leases transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the leased assets to the Group.

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts are capitalised at their fair values at the dates of
acquisition. The outstanding principal amounts are shown
as obligations under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts in the balance sheet. Finance charges, which
represent the difference between the total instalments
payable and the original principal amount at the date of
acquisition, are charged to the income statement at a
constant periodic rate on the principal outstanding over
the duration of the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —ZEE —#MF—HAF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the same basis as assets owned
by the Group or, where shorter, over the duration of the

leases.

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are depreciated
on the same basis as owned assets.

Operating leases

Where substantially all the rewards and the risks of
ownership of a leased asset remain with the leasing
company, such a lease is accounted for as an operating
lease.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease term.

Investments in securities
Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are
classified as either investment securities or other

investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an
identified long term strategic purpose, are stated at cost

less any impairment loss.

Other investments are stated at fair value and any
unrealised gains or losses are included in the income

statement.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted

average method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Recognition of revenue
Income from sale of goods is recognised when the goods

are delivered and the title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to
the principal outstanding and the applicable rate of
interest.

Rental income, including rentals received in advance, is
recognised on a straight line basis over the duration of
the leases.

Dividend income from investments in securities is
recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the
period/year after adjusting for items which are non-
assessable or disallowed. Certain items of income and
expenses are recognised for tax purposes in a different
accounting period from that in which they are recognised
in the financial statements. The tax effect of the resulting
timing differences, computed under the liability method,
is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial
statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability

or an asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —ZEE —#MF—HAF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, namely
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of these assets. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in

the period in which they are incurred.

Forward contracts

A forward contract is an agreement to exchange different
currencies at a specified future date and at a specified
rate. A non-speculative forward contract is one which is
designated and effective as a hedge of a foreign currency
asset, of a net monetary asset or liability, or of a firm
commitment in a foreign currency. All other forward
contracts, or parts of forward contracts in excess of the

hedged amount, are speculative.

Where a forward contract is speculative, any gain or loss,
either realised or unrealised, is credited or charged to the

income statement.

Where a non-speculative forward contract is used as a
hedge of a net monetary asset or liability, any gain or
loss, and discount or premium, on the contract are taken
to the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Forward contracts (continued)

Where a non-speculative forward contract is used as a
hedge of a firm commitment in a foreign currency, no
gain or loss is recognised during the commitment period.
At the end of the period, any gain or loss is added to, or
deducted from, the amount of the relevant transaction.
The discount or premium on the contract is deferred with
the gain or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an
expense as they fall due. The retirement benefits cost
charged to the income statement represents contributions
payable to the schemes by the Group at specified rates.

Where there are employees who leave the defined
contribution retirement benefit plans prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions
under that scheme is used to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group under that same scheme.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are translated at the approximate rates ruling on the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are re-translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling
on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

In preparing consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period/year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or
expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed
of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

TURNOVER 5. H¥XH®
Turnover represents the net amounts received and EEBES /FAAEERIINEES
receivable by the Group from sale of goods to outside HEEW 2B R R EWFIEFE-

customers during the period/year.

An analysis of the Group's turnover is as follows: AEBZEXBAINMOT:
THE GROUP
rEH
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—FB-F T F
MA—RAZ mMA—HBH=Z=
—EECF —FECF
+=-—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHETT
Sale of laminates 81 & 78 i E AR 1,527,443 1,895,811
Sale of printed circuit boards H & B ol 4% B& 1R 651,487 256,714
Sale of chemicals HETESR 319,176 265,118
Others Hity 54,194 46,613
2,552,300 2,464,256
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. EBKtEHDH
Business segments %o E
For management purposes, the Group is organised into MEEMS AEEEH ADES
four operating divisions — laminates, printed circuit boards, BE P9 : 78 2 E AR - ED Rl AR BE AR - ﬂ:IIZ
chemicals and others. These divisions are the basis on Sz&ﬁﬂﬂ ERFAEAERZ2HRE
which the Group reports its primary segment information. EHEER Z K&
Printed
circuit
Laminates boards Chemicals Others Eliminations Consolidated
BEER ORSER tIER Hitr e &a

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThET THER THET TET THER TET

Period from “ER-EMA-H
1 April 2002 to E-BEZ-F+-R
31 December 2002 =t-BLHH
Segment revenue PEHBA
External sales HIMNHER 1,527,443 651,487 319,176 54,194 - 2,552,300
Inter-segment sales DEEHER 96,630 = 183,884 = (280,514) =
Total A&t 1,624,073 651,487 503,060 54,194 (280,514) 2,552,300
Result £ |
Segment result DEEE 277,638 72,597 54,092 2,742 - 407,069
Amortisation of HEEH
goodwill - (10,807) - - - (10,807)
Release of negative BREER
goodwill to income KA 8,513 - - - - 8,513
Unallocated corporate KA EZ A
income WA 46,875
Unallocated corporate KA EZ A
expenses T (6,423)
Profit from operations 4 & i 7 445,227
Finance costs BE R (48,276)

Loss on deemed disposal R {EH & —
of partial interests in NS R

a subsidiary G Fod i (21,187) = = = = (21,187)
Profit before taxation B &% Al 7 375,764
Taxation B (22,392)
Profit before minority R P HRE#ER

interests Al A 353,372
Minority interests DERE RS (52,084)
Profit for the period AH R A 301,288
Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market DEHEER N2 EMEHE
prices.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Period from 1 April 2002 “EZ"FMA-A
to 31 December 2002 EZBE-FTZR
St-HLEHE
Other information Hih & #
Capital additions BARER
Depreciation and amortisation 17 & & % 34
Deficit arising on revaluation BREMFEMEL

of investment properties

At 31 December 2002

Assets

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets APBZRARBE

Consolidated total assets GREEAE
Liabilities afE

Segment liabilities PHEE

Unallocated corporate liabilites ~ A2 EZ R A&E

Consolidated total liabilities FRARERE

CEE - FMA AR =TT =F+ - A=+—HI R

6. XKkt (&)

KB (E)

R=-Z2F-F+t=-A=t-H

Printed

circuit
Laminates boards Chemicals Others Consolidated
BHER HORKER CIER Hit &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEL FEL TEL FEL
368,771 171,183 137,266 7,973 685,193
140,819 28,721 19,573 3,749 192,862
- - - 793 793
3,683,678 789,923 762,507 128,689 5,364,797
304,869
5,669,666
(316,154) (205,305) (127,516) (10,724) (659,699)
(1,886,601)
(2,546,300)

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = ‘i’
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Year ended
31 March 2002

Segment revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total

Result

Segment result

Amortisation of
goodwill

Unallocated
corporate income

Unallocated
corporate expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit before minority
interests

Minority interests

Profit for the year

6. EBKtEoI; (&)

EXRoE (F)
Printed
circuit
Laminates boards Chemicals Others Eliminations Consolidated
BHER ORERR tIER H B =4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL THL
HZ2-ZZ-F-A
=t+-HILEE
A A
HINEESR 1,895,811 256,714 265,118 46,613 = 2,464,256
DEMEHER 53,049 = 128,787 = (181,836) =
) 1,948,860 256,714 393,905 46,613 (181,836) 2,464,256
E¥
DBER 378,571 38,336 31,236 7,886 = 456,029
HEEH
= (3,611) = = = (3,611)
N AN
WA 9,032
N AN
¥ (3,761)
iyl 457,689
BEM K (47,740)
B4 Al Al 409,949
#IE (21,673)
K PEREER
Al 4 388,276
DYRREER (49,326)
KEERF

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market

prices.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 6. X¥BE R o I (&)
Business segments (continued) E¥aE (&)
Printed
circuit
Laminates boards Chemicals Others Consolidated
BAER  ERARER tIER Hitr )

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET TET THER TR

Year ended 31 March 2002 HE-ZZ-F=FH
=t+-HIEEE
Other information HEfhEH
Capital additions BARER 426,393 156,726 193,146 13,883 790,148
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & R # 34 167,379 17,083 17,297 3,823 205,582
Deficit arising on revaluation RENZEMLEM
of investment properties - - - 135 135
At 31 March 2002 RZBEE-§=R=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets SHEE 3,375,990 628,692 559,769 68,861 4,633,312
Unallocated corporate assets AOBZAREBE 204,760
Consolidated total assets LREERA 4,838,072
Liabilities B8
Segment liabilities AHEE (297,387) (214,912) (119,126) (4,590) (636,015)
Unallocated corporate liabilities #®2EZAREE (1,439,909)
Consolidated total liabilities LABRAR (2,075,924)

KBE;EH’.IE@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical segments
The analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical
market for the period/year is as follows:

PRC H
Other Asian countries HAb oM B R
Europe B M
America x

An analysis of segment assets and capital additions by
geographical area in which the assets are located has not
been presented as the Group's assets are substantially
located in the PRC.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

EBRwE o B (F)

42 7 2B

AT RAEERAHE,FERTS
WIKE D2 EXBOMN:

1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EE-F —EE-F
MA—BZE mMA—RBZE
—EE-F —EECF
+=-—A=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FExT FAT
2,019,201 2,129,487
380,652 226,929
94,521 49,089
57,926 58,751
2,552,300 2,464,256

HRAKREZ EEXEDL N E:
WU EREEMEMISERSBEE

K BARBRD M-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

7.  OTHER OPERATING INCOME 7. HEEWA
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EEC-F —TE—F
A—RZ mA—HB=Z=
—EEC-F —TE_F
+=-—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Other operating income comprises: Hih gL WA BHE:

Bank interest income RITH B A 2,561 2,879

Dividend income from listed LETEHEREZREKA
investment securities 5,020 7,389

Gain on disposal of listed investment H& EMHEHFKE 2 W=
securities 42,106 -
Rental income e WA 1,748 1,643
Others H A 3,016 7,432
54,451 19,343

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = Gi’
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

8.  PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 8. RgmA
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECF —FE—F
A—BZE mA—HB=Z=
—EECF —BEC_F
+=—A=+—-8B =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Profit from operations has been KR T e Mk
arrived at after charging: LATNIE R -
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A B &
— current year —REE 2,373 2,377
— (over)underprovision in prior year —LFE (BE) T2RE (177) 125
Deficit arising on revaluation of KEMEEHEBEA
investment properties 793 135
Depreciation and amortisation on e R #H
— owned assets —BERE 192,862 197,366
— assets held under finance leases —RERERORAERE
and hire purchase contracts BRRBEZEE = 8,216
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE BEREKEZ
and equipment i 1,433 1,102
Total staff costs, including directors’ BEIXNAEHE BEES
emoluments (see note (a) below) B (5T 5k aE@) 151,394 134,127

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

RERA (F)

Information regarding directors’ and employees’ EEREEME 2 EH
emoluments
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFHT
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—FB-F T F
MA—HZ mA—HBH=Z=
—EECF —FE_F
+=-—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FAT
Directors’ fees EEHE
Executive AT = =
Independent non-executive B IEMAT 240 180
240 180
Emoluments of executive WITESZT2M 2
directors:
Salaries and other benefits Fe kEAMREF 11,830 15,856
Performance related THERIRIEL
incentive bonuses 2,862 4,100
14,692 19,956
14,932 20,136

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = Gi)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

8. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 8.

Information regarding directors’ and employees’

emoluments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the directors were within the

following bands:

Up to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000

1,000,000/ 7T 3 A T

1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000 7T
1,500,001% 7T — 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 Jt —2,500,000% 7T
2,500,001 7t — 3,000,000 7T

(a)

On 11 October 2002, certain directors of the
Company were granted options to subscribe for
42,400,000 shares in the Company at HK$3.74 per
share. These options remained unexercised at the
end of the current period.

During the year ended 31 March 2002, certain
directors of the Company exercised options granted
on 20 January 2000 to subscribe for 3,616,960
shares in the Company at HK$2.256 per share.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the current period and the year ended 31 March
2002 were executive directors whose emoluments
are included in note (a) above.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

(b)

mERR (4

EsrEEMES2ESN (B)

EFHe (&)
EEMENTFUTEE:
Number of directors
EEAH
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—BE-F —EE-F
+=—HA=+-8 =ZA=+—H
3 3
2 —
7 2
- 6
- 1
12 12

m:§7_¢+ﬁ+ SN

N AH F%%%#%%%k
W LAEIR3. 748 TREAR D
W15 42,400 oooﬂxoutTfﬁgéfﬁﬁ
BERANAEKRERDARTT
o

REZE-ET-_F=A=+—
HEFE BETARREST
FEHRER=ZTEZTZF—A=+
HERTZEBLABRE ZE
f%2.256/% LR EE AR AR M
3,616,960/ °

=Nk
RAHEEEEZZEZT _F=

A=+—RALFE - A&EE8H
NESHFALTEHAENITE
EHECHEFBEHN LEX
Bt 5% (a)°



Bt %% W R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

9 FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMRAX
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECF —FE—F
A—BZE mA—HB=Z=
—EECF —BEC_F
+=-—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TER FHET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARAFRNEHEEZ
repayable within five years RITIEE RS 39,869 47,029
Interest on loans from minority —EB ARz LERE
shareholders of a subsidiary iRt E R F &
(note 24) (P 5£24) 215 679
Finance charges in respect of finance FEMALONHEELSH
leases and hire purchase contracts ZEEBR 520 2,268
Other finance charges Hihgh & & A 8,591 2,621
49,195 52,597
Less: Interest capitalised (note 15) B BEAREF S (FEEE15) (919) (4,857)
48,276 47,740

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = GE’




Bt %5 8RN A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

10.

LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS
IN A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 28 March 2002
entered into between Jamplan (BVI) Limited and Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited, both of which are
subsidiaries of the Company, Jamplan (BVI) Limited has
subscribed for 52,500,000 new shares in Kingboard Copper
Foil Holdings Limited at a price of $$0.32 per share.
Concurrently, Jamplan (BVI) Limited entered into a
placement agreement with the Development Bank of
Singapore Ltd. (“DBS”) pursuant to which DBS, as
placement agent, would purchase, or procure the purchase,
from Jamplan (BVI) Limited 70,000,000 existing shares in
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited at a price of
$$0.32 per share.

Following the completion of the share subscription and
placement in April 2002 as described above and the
approval of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited on 9 April 2002, the Group’s equity interest in
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited, decreased from 64.81% to 57.68%. The
loss on deemed disposal of interest suffered by the Group
as a result of the share subscription and placement is
HK$21,187,000.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

10.

HREHE-—BNBLTBOES
ZER

B ¥ Jamplan (BVI) LimitedEd
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited (& /AR T 2B A F)
R-BEE-F=A-F+N\BAFTZZR
BE 13 - Jamplan (BVI) Limited B 2 &
A% 0.32% N3 7T 2 (B #& R EEKingboard
Copper Foil Holdings LimitedZ ¥7 i%
9 52,500,000/% ° £2 it [7] # - Jamplan
(BVI) Limited B2 37 hn 3 & R R1T AR 2
Al (TN BEREIT]) AT —HE
EHE R KRBT
EREFMNMETXLZHERM
Jamplan (BVI) Limited® & Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited 23R A&
P17 70,000,0008% * & A {E{E0.32%7 /N
T e

R _—_TT_FNATK Xtz
BORBEREERR_ZZT_FMOA
1. H #Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited#t & - K& E R
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited (E B& {5 #ESingapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited ) Ff &
PRARE = FR64.81% B ES7.68% ° IN&E
B R 1T IR0 PR I Bl 5 T 4 AR 1
ERRZBRMEA%21,187,000%

7L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

11. TAXATION 11.
The amount comprises: TIE B
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEAENEH
Charge for the period/year AEREFEX
Overprovision in prior years TFEBERE
Taxation in other jurisdictions HihaE#ER 2 HIA
Deferred taxation iR FE R 1A
(Credit) charge for the period/year ANERRS R (BE)
(note 31) (KM$7E31)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% on the
estimated assessable profits of the Group derived from
Hong Kong during the period/year.

Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

B
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EEC_HF —FE—F
mMA—RAZ MmA—HZ=
—EECHF —FE-F
+=—BA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T TFH& T
18,022 13,030
(1,372) (8,902)
16,650 4,128
6,070 12,691
(328) 4,854
22,392 21,673

BEENESRIBREBEAEBAHHE,F
EREBEBESZHTERREAIZ
16% 2 TR HE -

At R AT 2 BOE A B AR
ZUBHESE-

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = Gi’
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002

12. DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend declared/paid
of 4.0 cents (1.4.2001 to
31.3.2002: 3.5 cents) per
ordinary share

Final dividend proposed of 6.0 cents
(1.4.2001 to 31.3.2002: 8.0 cents)
per ordinary share

Additional dividend paid in respect
of the pervious year as a result
of new shares issued subsequent
to the approval of the previous

year’s financial statements

CEE - FNMA—HAE=FEE—F+ A=+ —HILAHRH

12. RBRE
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EE-F —ET—F
mMA—HZE mA—R=
—EECF —EECF
+=—A=+—-8 =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
BB,/ kTR E SR’
T@BAON (=TT —F
MA—HZE-ZTZT_F
=A=+—8:3.5(L) 21,546 16,533
#R R B IR B 8 IR I i AR 6.0
—ET-FWA—H
1—77—45'5 ﬁ
=+—H8:8.01L) 32,527 43,078
E R HEE £ F S B Rk
2B BATR D i
MEFEIRE ZBINRE
14 =
54,087 59,611

Subsequent to 31 December 2002, a final dividend of 6.0
cents per share has been proposed by the directors and is

subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming

annual general meeting. The amount of the proposed final

dividend is calculated on the basis of the proposed dividend
rate and the 542,124,347 ordinary shares (31.3.2002:
538,469,248 ordinary shares) in issue at the date of the

report.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

R-ZZETE-_F+=-A=+—HB2%"
ESERRERPREFRE.0BW:
HAFRRENERERRBFE KNE it
EFAMEE IR REBARE 2 RER
EZEREXRAREAHE FT
LBAR542,124347 R (ZEE —F =
A=1+—H:538,469,2480%) st &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —ZEE —#MF—HAF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on the following data:

AEERNREERR

Earnings for the purpose of calculating

basic and diluted earnings per share &z 2 F
Weighted average number of ordinary &t & EARF % ZEF
shares for the purpose of calculating = & 8@ A% fn4&

basic earnings per share 1 8
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BBTEEUNE
shares relating to: AR

— outstanding share options
— outstanding warrants

EBEERAR
8 A% hn 4
15 &

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating 2
diluted earnings per share

In computing the diluted earnings per share, the effect of
dilutive potential ordinary shares relating to the put options
granted the Group to certain minority shareholders of a
subsidiary, as set out in note 35, has been disregarded as
it would not be dilutive.

—RITE 2 BEBRE
— RITEZRBRIEE

13. BRER

EARAREEEIRAN THIZIAT BURE

st

ﬁ:
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—BB-F —TTF
MA—HZ MmA—HBHZ=
—EERCF —EEF
TEAET=08 ZE[F=ZT—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
301,288 338,950

Number of shares

RHEE
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECHF —ETF
+=—HA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
538,210,665 483,854,516
4,145,537 1,994,792
6,136,488 1,033,870
548,492,690 486,883,178

EFRE#sERABFE RAEER
—HRBRARZEFLEBRRE TR
AR (RMIRE35) MELZBEL R
BRBBLETTER BETEHEK
BEo

KBz 2 ¢« = = H(ED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWH
THE GROUP
rEH
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECF —BE_F
+=-—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
VALUATION {8
Balance at the beginning of the B ) 4 B
period/year 30,485 30,620
Additions IR 1,574 -
Transfer from properties for own use  FEABAYWE 4,859 =
Deficit arising on revaluation BfEEAL (793) (135)
Balance at the end of the period/year  F B,/ iR & & 36,125 30,485
The Group’s investment property REEZERE
portfolio comprises the following YEHEEBRE
properties: TEIE:
In Hong Kong held under B EEOR
medium term leases BEEEAR 7,565 5,975
Outside Hong Kong held under BIBEATHORE R
VASIN [ 5
— medium term leases — R HEIFR 49 9,170 8,000
- long leases —RHEAL 19,390 16,510
36,125 30,485
The valuation of the Group’s investment properties at the FFFRERE ETRAR M EELET
balance sheet date was carried out by Messrs. Chung, HAREEMBREMENEERZE
Chan & Associates, chartered surveyors, on an open market B-EHEAMBRERF K-

value basis. The deficit arising on revaluation is charged
to the income statement.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

15. OTHER PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. HMtYE-BERRZE
Properties,
Furniture, plant and
Leasehold fixtures equipment
Properties improve- and under
for ments  Plantand  equipment Motor construction
own use BH  machinery HREE vehidles EEFHE: Total
HRNZE  NX%E HERES K&k RE  HERRK CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL
THE GROUP ALE
cosT A
At 1 April 2002 A\-FT_4MNA-A 516,457 48,469 2,093,377 27,464 47,731 268,947 3,002,445
Currency realignment BHAE 3,172 1 7,671 17 340 1,724 13,079
Additions HE 18,849 879 202,935 7,661 10,534 444,335 685,193
Transfer to investment ERARE
properties nE (5,305) - - - - = (5,305)
Disposals & (347) (50) (32,200) (208) (2,430) (1,135) (36,370)
Reclassifications ENNE 65,087 25 247,615 8,941 268 (322,163) -
At 31 December 2002 RZEZF
+-B=t-H 597,913 49,551 2,519,398 44,029 56,443 391,708 3,659,042
DEPRECIATION AND hERE#
AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2002 R-EE-_ENA-A 42,762 9,515 567,467 10,480 21,929 - 652,153
Currency realignment EHRE 204 9 778 2 125 - 1,143
Provided for the period AHRER 12,047 3,446 167,219 4,508 5,642 - 192,862
Eliminated on transferto ~ AEBALENE
investment properties [i}= (446) - = = = = (446)
Eliminated on disposals It £ B 3 (87) (30) (25,514) (133) (896) = (26,660)
At 31 December 2002 R-FT-%
+ZA=+-H 54,480 12,940 709,950 14,882 26,800 - 819,052
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2002 RZEEF
+-B=t-H 543,433 36,611 1,809,448 29,147 29,643 391,708 2,839,990
At 31 March 2002 RZZZZ
=ZA=t+-H 473,695 38954 1,525,910 16,984 25,802 268947 2,350,292

KB =

c:sn @




Bt %5 8RN A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

15.

OTHER PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

An analysis of the Group’s properties which are held for

own use is as follows:

REFHHOR
BAERH

In Hong Kong held under
medium term leases

Outside Hong Kong held under

LA @ 35 H
— medium term leases — R HE L
- long leases —REMEL

Included in the net book value of plant and machinery at
31 March 2002 was an amount of approximately
HK$44,767,000 which relates to assets held under finance
leases and hire purchase contracts.

During the period, interest of HK$919,000 (1.4.2001 to
31.3.2002: HK$4,857,000) was capitalised under property,
plant and equipment under construction. All previously
capitalised interest amounts were transferred to the
appropriate categories of properties, plant and equipment
during the period/year on completion of construction.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

REBATHOREE

15.

HteME -BERRE (&)

AEBEZERYEISNBOT:
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EEC_HF —FE-F

+=—BA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FH& T
13,681 16,467
517,749 443,317
12,003 13,911
543,433 473,695

BMEMBER-_EE_F=A=+—
BB FELEREMERAD
LHBAEAREBEZEE 284
44,767,000 TG °

REA - A8919,0008 T (T —
FOMA—REZZZE-_F=R=+4—
H:4,857,000 #7T) 2 M 8 RIEER
ME-BEREEBETERNM-RAITF
EEXLZFEBERBE " FREY
X BERIBEKNECERZEEE
To



15.

16.
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OTHER PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. HYE-BERSEE (&)

(continued)

THE COMPANY

COST

Balance at 1 April 2002
and 31 December 2002

DEPRECIATION
Balance at 1 April 2002
Provided for the period

Balance at 31 December 2002

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2002

At 31 March 2002

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Listed shares, at cost

Furniture,
fixtures and

equipment
RR-EERZE
HK$'000
FBT
b NN
2N
AZETZ_FNUA—HK
—EE_FA+-_A=+—HZER 348
e
A—EE_FIUA—HZ&EH 237
7N B 7 B 69
AZTE_F+_HA=+—H &% 306
BREFE
N—TE-_F+-A=+—H =
R_FTF_F=A=+—H 111
16. RHEBATZRE
THE COMPANY
P NN
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECF —EE-F
+=B=+—-8 =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FBT
JEEMRRG R A 38,954 38,954
EWRR D KA 28,335 13,355
67,289 52,309

KBE;EH’.IE@
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16.  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RHMEBRARAZRE (&)
The listed shares comprise shares in Kingboard Copper IR BRERAREERE KB
Foil Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company which A A]Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
shares are listed in Singapore, which are held directly by Limited (E B 0 RO N4 E 1) 2 AR
the Company. The market value of these listed shares at MoZELTROR_ZBEZT_F+=
31 December 2002 was approximately HK$30,256,000 A=+—H 2 mE#%30,256,000/
(31.3.2002: HK$11,087,000). T(ZEFE _F=ZHA=+—8:

11,087,000% 7T ) °

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 RAREEMB AR ZZEZE_F+
December 2002 are set out in note 41. A=t —HZFBEHRMEL -
17. GOODWILL 17. B8
THE GROUP
KEH
HK$'000
FE T
COST 2%
At 1 April 2002 and RZEZ-_FMOA—ARK
31 December 2002 —EE_F+-_F=+—H 144,626
AMORTISATION 5
At 1 April 2002 RZZTEZE-_FWMA—A 3,611
Provided for the period 7 B R B 10,807
At 31 December 2002 RZEE_F+_A=+—H 14,418
NET BOOK VALUE REFEE
At 31 December 2002 RZETE-_HF+=-A=+—H 130,208
At 31 March 2002 RZETE-_F=H=+—H 141,015
Goodwill is amortised over estimated useful lives of 10 EEDR+E 2 G ERFERE
years. fH e

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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NEGATIVE GOODWILL 18.
GROSS AMOUNT HWEE
Arising from acquisition of 7 B A 35 B B /B 2 A
additional interests in subsidiaries M M E A KPP
during the period and balance —EE_F+ R
at 31 December 2002 —t+—Hz&%
RELEASED TO INCOME HIWA
Released in the period and balance REIAREHER —TZ —4F
at 31 December 2002 +—_A=+—Bz&&%
CARRYING AMOUNT R‘EE%%E
At 31 December 2002 RZEZEZF+=-_A=+—H

Negative goodwill is released to income over estimated
useful lives of depreciable assets of 2 years.

aEHE

THE GROUP
rEH
HK$'000
FHT

22,702

8,513
14,189

BREINAFEEEZATAIAF
Hl (2%F) ABEKRA-

KBE;EH’.IE@
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

19. INVESTMENT SECURITIES 19.

Investment securities comprise minority equity stakes in
certain industrial companies, which shares are listed in
Hong Kong. They are held for identified long term strategic
purposes and, in the opinion of the directors, they are
worth at least their cost.

HERE

BFREBERETIRERRZAOH
AR HEA ETZH&@E’:\%E%L
Mo RZEFRENIRETE 2 KUK
KE EEER F_Hit—md%%xﬁZF
BERLHEERERANE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
KEH KA F

31.12.2002 31.3.2002 31.12.2002 31.3.2002

—EE_-F —EE_F —EE_F —ZTEF

+=RBA=+-H =A=+—H +=ZBA=+-—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FERT FHE T

Listed shares, at cost ~ E R R AE 291,531 175,186 162,935 152,530
Market value at the REEHZHE

balance sheet date 277,049 204,212 155,708 168,361

20. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 20. ¥ERBET =

Non-current deposits represent deposits paid for the
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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21.

22.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

The amount of

Bt %% W R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002

R
ERm

L fn

inventories which were carried at net

realisable value was insignificant.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables of HK$1,116,149,000 (31.3.2002:
HK$950,375,000). The Group allows credit periods of up
to 120 days, depending on the product sold, to its trade

customers. The a

follows:

0 - 90 days
91 — 180 days
Over 180 days

ged analysis of the trade receivables is as

FEATE

A+—E-EATA

—BNATBERLE

CEE - FMA AR =TT =F+ - A=+—HI R

21. #FE&
THE GROUP
AEE
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EEC_HF —FE-F
+=ZA=+—8H =RA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
275,361 246,525
168,247 95,641
178,142 227,782
621,750 569,948
BRI R FEINRIFERBEYTE
KO
22. EFREMEWRERARENRIE

BESRHEMEKRERREMNKERRE
A801,116,149,0008 T (T — &
=HA=+—H:950,375,000& 7T) 2
BRESER - AEBERTESER
ZEERESERAE1208 RIMEE
MmME - NEE 2 EUWE F IR 2 RER

DT
THE GROUP
KEHE

31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECHF —FE-F
+=—BA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FH T FH& T
807,250 651,436
262,427 252,869
46,472 46,070
1,116,149 950,375

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = (i’
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. ESZRHEHMEMNSERER
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables ESREMENERBRERH
of HK$304,126,000 (31.3.2002: HK$253,597,000). The 304,126,000 T (ZEZT—_F= A=
aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows: +—H:253,597,0008 T) 2 FEH &
SEF-BRHESERZERD TN
¢
THE GROUP
rEE
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EE- —ETT =
+=—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
0 - 90 days TENTH 253,236 218,762
91 - 180 days Nn+—Z2—8BNAT+H 39,787 23,410
Over 180 days —BATAHANKE 11,103 11,425
304,126 253,597
24. LOANS FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF A 24, —EREBEARIZLBRRRHEZ
SUBSIDIARY BX

The loans were unsecured and bore interest at market ZEERWERERREMISHNEGFE

rates. The amounts were repaid during the period. FlE - AEBEREBAEEREA.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES AND HIRE 25. BMEMRAREBESHERE
PURCHASE CONTRACTS

THE GROUP
rEH
Minimum Present value of
lease payment minimum lease payment
BEBENGTR BEENGRZRE
31.12.2002 31.3.2002 31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—BE2C-F —ET-F —BECE —TT_F
+=Z—B=+-B =A=t+—H +=ZA=+t—-B =ZRA=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET TERT FTHET
Amount payable under RIEFER L K
finance leases and HEEHAE
hire purchase R—FR
contracts within 2 BIE
one year - 10,773 - 10,240
Less: Finance charges & : @t & & H - (533) = =
Present value of the  JIERBAEZ
lease and hire HAORBEBEEY
purchase payments EERE
shown under
current liabilities - 10,240 - 10,240
The Company had no obligations under finance leases or RATWEAAMREROSEAEE L
hire purchase contracts. HEHE o

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = <=>
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26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. RITEE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
RER KAT
31.12.2002 31.3.2002 31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EE_F —2E-F —EEC-F 2T -F
+=A=t-B =ZA=+-H t+=A=+-A =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FERT FET
Trust receipt loans ERREER 50,517 6,056 - =
Bank loans BITER 1,604,745 1,341,604 546,667 600,000
Total A& 1,655,262 1,347,660 546,667 600,000

Bank borrowings are AR T 7 HIFEE
repayable as follows: 2 #B{TEE:

— within one year -R—FR
and shown under EERIE
current liabilities mBEE 507,433 686,684 11,429 200,000
— within the second -REZFA
year BE 297,226 430,914 115,716 266,667
— in the second to -REZFZF
fifth year EFRENER 850,603 230,062 419,522 133,333
— amount due after ——FHIEz
one year IR 1,147,829 660,976 535,238 400,000
Total B & 1,655,262 1,347,660 546,667 600,000
The bank borrowings are unsecured and bear interest at RITEENEERRETISHNEGFE
market rates. F B e

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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26.

27.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 26. WBITEE (&)
On 28 February 2003 and 17 March 2003, the Group RZEZE=F_A=-+\AR=ZET
entered into agreements to refinance certain borrowings =EF=ZATtR - XAKEITZZER
which were drawn down in 2001 and repayable over a EOUERETER_ZZE—F1RA
period of three years. Under the refinancing agreements, WER=FANEEZIEELETHR
HK$358.4 million of the loans originally due in the year B-REBEAREHZ RiIIREBE_Z
ending 31 December 2003 will now be repayable after Z=F+_A=+—HILEFERIH
2003. As a result, for the purpose of presentation in the 818 2 & 5%358,400,000/% JT 3R 7] A
repayment schedule set out above, the amount of TE=F7RER-B BFAE L
HK$358.4 million is included in the amount due after one MEREBEF 2RI ZELRH
year. 358,400,000/ 7T 2 R K5 A — F 1&
FIERE IR 2 sRIE -
SHARE CAPITAL 27. BA
Number
of shares Amount
g g ok
HK$'000
FH T
Authorised: ETE
At 31 March 2002 and R-_ZZT_F=H
31 December 2002 =+—BARZ=ZZFT=F
+=-—A=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE0. 108 T EimAR 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: B 31T REUE R
Balance at 1 April 2001 R-ZEZE-—FMOA—B&E#H# 472,177,448 47,218
Issue of new shares (see note below)  ZE1THF M (BT i) 60,000,000 6,000
Exercise of share options TEELERE (RHE28)

(see note 28) 4,338,000 434
Exercise of warrants (see note 29) TR EE (R E29) 180,000 18
Balance at 31 March 2002 MRZTZT_F=A=+—H#&H 536,695,448 53,670
Exercise of warrants (see note 29) TERKRERE (RHE29) 1,956,200 195
Balance at 31 December 2002 R-EZE-_F+=-H=+—H

R 538,651,648 53,865

KBE%&H’.IE@
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27.

—EE-FMA—HA

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

On 8 January 2002, an agreement was entered into by Hallgain
Management Limited (“Hallgain”), the controlling shareholder of
the Company, and a placing agent for a placement of 60,000,000
existing ordinary shares (the “Placing Shares”) of HK$0.10 each
in the Company at a price of HK$5.35 per share (the “Placing
Price”). CLSA Limited was appointed by Hallgain as the placing
agent to unconditionally place the Placing Shares to six or more
independent professional and institutional investors on a fully
underwritten basis. CLSA Limited and the placees (and their
ultimate beneficial owners) are independent of and not connected
with any of the directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or an
associate of any of them.

On the same date, Hallgain also entered into a subscription
agreement with the Company to subscribe for 60,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (the “Subscription
Shares”) at a price of HK$5.35 per share (the “Subscription
Price”).

The Placing Shares and the Subscription Shares each represented
approximately 12.71% of the then existing share capital of the
Company and approximately 11.27% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Subscription Shares. The Placing Price and the Subscription Price
of HK$5.35 represented a discount of approximately 6.14% to
the closing price of HK$5.70 per share quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 7 January 2002 and a premium of approximately
6.4% to the average closing price of the shares of the Company
for the last ten trading days of HK$5.03 per share from 20
December 2001 to 7 January 2002 (both days inclusive).

Of the net proceeds to the Company from the share subscription
of approximately HK$312 million, approximately HK$126 million
was used to repay existing bank borrowings of the Group,
approximately HK$32.7 million was used for the acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries and approximately HK$60.3
million was reserved for future potential acquisitions. The
remaining balance was used for general working capital purposes.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

27.

E-FTE-F+ZA=+—HILHH

A (&)

i
R-ZBZE_F—RBN\HB ARF ZERK
® Hallgain Management Limited

(Hallgain] ) 822 & RIS — R ipaH - &
HREEARAEREECIETZER L
i 60,000,0008% ([ECE MM ]) - BAXIE
BE535B T ([REEE]) BESEFEARA
A #HallgainZ EREERIE A EZEE
BHEEESRERNBGHRE T REX
NEBTEXERRBREELE -BEREFF
RABERAREA (RREZRREGHER
A) B RBILA L B D R 3 H A ] B
RAZERNERE TE2THAE FTERR
KBMEZHEATREEBE-

P [E B - HallgainJF B AR A B 5] 32 — 1B R RE
e UERERSISBETZER ([RE
B REARQREREE0.10E T2 H K
2 60,000,0008% ([REERM ) -

RERDKRERNMDSEHERARER 2R
BRAL12.71% » RAGAR A B FH 8L 3% &3
TRERMOMBRAZEZETRALN
11.27% ° BREE RREES. 35 TRRMD
R_ETE-_F—-AtBEBIAEEIK
TEERS. 708 TTTEA6.14% » MEARRD
ARNBE =TT —F+-_A=Z+tHE=ZT
T-F—-AtR(BEERMA) E+HER
S22 FHRMESRS.038 T8 Al
HA6.4%% (B -

RRARGBRNARBEEEMEBRBFENA
312,000,0005% 7T+ & F %9 126,000,0007%
TEARBEEASEZRERITEE L
32,700,000/ yt ARG IE I B A 7] 2 #E 2
X #960,300,0007% ;L TE B B & #E T U EB
ZHABRABE-REEES-
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28.

SHARE OPTIONS

Under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
11 May 1998, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Options granted under this scheme are
exercisable over a period of ten years commencing six
months after the date on which they have been accepted.
No more options can be granted under this share option
scheme upon the amendment on the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) dated 1 September 2001.

Under the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 2 July 2002, which is valid for a period of ten
years, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options as an incentive to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company at a price equal to the higher
of the nominal value of the Company’s shares, the average
of the closing prices of the Company’s shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options and the closing
price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options. The options must be taken up within 28 days
from the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 and are
exercisable over a period to be determined and notified
by the directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of acceptance of the offer for
the grant of the options but shall end in any event not
later than ten years from the date of adoption of the

Scheme.

28.

BEBRE

BEARAR—-NAANFRA+—R
Rz BEBRESE ARRES
EARARBIREMBARZEER
BE(BRER)RTELBEE X
BREARARD REBEZAEET
2B BBE R N A B 2 1R N (E
AR Z THERTE -EBZHES
ERRA(TETRAYD R =_FFT—
FAA-RBELERR A2RAF
RiFZtEBREBELBERE-

REARANR_FFT_FLA_BRK
Mz BEBEERS ([%H8])) (B
MH/I0F) ARBZEFGARA
RALEMBRRIZAEREER (B
RER)RTEABBIEERER A
BEHBAERARARMDEE XA A
BORETEEBEREES B 28 B E
RHBEMIMBEZFHRTER
ARARBRMNRERTEELEREERZ
AEBXABEFSZEHE (UBRSE
BMAE) 2BRRBBARR 2D -&
FERELARR L BHEF28EB R
EXMIETETUAER AARES
BEEYBANESMARAZHPRATT
B MEREAR TELBRE
2 HEF EARKMAZTEE B E
AR T EER-

KBE;’;&H:IE@
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28.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme together with shares
previously issued pursuant to options exercised under the
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time and the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one employee shall not exceed 30% of
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options

may be granted under the Scheme.

At 31 December 2002, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 53,000,000, representing 9.8% of
the shares of the Company in issue on that date. Total
consideration received during the current period from
eligible employees for taking up the options granted
amounted to HK$10.

No charge is recognised in the income statement in respect

of the value of share options granted during the period.

m [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

28.

BEBRE (&)

RIFZ TSI TR B RBEEY R 2K
BB ERER N ERRIEZET BT
EEEBREMDET 2R &HX
THREBARA TR ZEETRA
10% > MEA—REEANERTZE
SRS M2 RN EB LRAITE
HBBRIEZT S RESLBERES R
ZHBRMER LR 230% °

R-TBET-_F+-_A=+—RH BE
ZrtEEEEmMERITEZEEER
W K2 IR nE B A&53,000,0008% ' 14
RRARNERZBBTRMNI.8% ° I
REEMENELERECSERE
BB 2 BRERI0B T

HAYERR L EEBREZEBERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

A summary of the movements of the share options is as

follows:

Balance at 1 April 2001
(note (a))
Exercised during the year

N-FE—£mA—A
28 (@)
B 91T 8 (B BE(D))

(note (b))
Balance at 31 March 2002 R-ZEFT-_F=H
=t+—B2z&%
Granted during the period REARE E (B 5 ()
(note (c))
Balance at 31 December 2002 R=FZ -+ =H
=+—Bz&&

Notes:

(a)

The balance comprised options granted on 20 January
2000 to subscribe for 4,338,000 shares in the Company
at HK$2.256 per share. These options are exercisable over
a period from 19 July 2000 to 10 May 2008.

On 6 March 2002, options to subscribe for 4,338,000
shares in the Company at HK$2.256 per share were
exercised. The average of the closing price of the
Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately before 6 March 2002 was
HK$5.90.

On 11 October 2002, options to subscribe for 53,000,000
shares in the Company at HK$3.74 per share were granted
to eligible employees. These options are exercisable over
a period from 15 October 2002 to 2 July 2012.

Bt %% W R MY &

—EE-_FHA-HAZ=

T _F+-HA=1—HILHH

28. BEERE (&)

BERBRIEZEHHEMOT:
Granted to Granted to
directors employees Total
RT¥ES BRFEER &t
3,616,960 721,040 4,338,000
(3,616,960) (721,040) (4,338,000)
42,400,000 10,600,000 53,000,000
42,400,000 10,600,000 53,000,000
Wy ot

(a)

HEHReEEN-_ZTTF—A=1+AH
BEAIESK2256%8 TRE
4,338,000l A AR 2 B L8
BE-ZEBLERETR-TT
TEL+A+NBE-_ZTENERA
+ B IEHEATTE.

Al T A% 2.25678 TR 84,338,000
RARBIRGO 2BEBREEN =
TE-F = AARNAITFE- AR AR
R —EZE_F=AHBZAAME
X5 BEBMRARE 2 FHKTE
£5.908 T

RZZEZE-F+A+—H 68K
EEERFTAIRER3I7T4IETRE
53,000,000/ A2 R A& 1D 2 1B L BB
BRE-ZEEBLERETR =T
—#+A+ABE-_ZE——%+AH
—HBIEHETE.

KBz 2 ¢+ = & =
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29.

30.

WARRANTS

At an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 28 August 2001, a bonus issue of warrants to the
shareholders of the Company, in the proportion of one
warrant for every ten shares held in the share capital of
the Company, was proposed and approved. Consequently,
47,217,744 warrants were issued, conferring rights to the
holders of the warrants until 31 December 2003 to
subscribe up to HK$273,862,915 for shares of HK$0.10
each in the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$5.80 per share.

During the period, 1,956,200 (1.4.2001 to 31.3.2002:
180,000) new shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
were issued on exercise of the warrants. Exercise in full of
the remaining outstanding warrants would, under the
present capital structure, result in receipt by the Company
of HK$261,472,955 (31.3.2002: HK$272,818,915) in
subscription monies and the issue of 45,081,544 (31.3.
2002: 47,037,744) new shares of HK$0.10 each in the

Company.

RESERVES

THE GROUP

The special surplus account of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries which
were acquired by the Company under the group
reorganisation in 1993 and the nominal amount of the
deferred shares of a subsidiary, Kingboard Laminates
Limited.

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 31.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

29.

30.

R EE
RZZEE-—FNAZ+N\BREITZE
NRABRRFRARE £ ARAEHE

T

BRAEARQRIRAES 2 R TRER

— D RRIEE 2 LL Bl A A QB AR R B
THFRBREE WEESHE-B
It R BB 31T747,217,74415 AR AE
BHEHBEEABRETERANTRZ-ZEE
—F+ A =+—HZA&ES%5.80
BTV RBERER S
273,862,915 T2 AR el B R EE
0108 L2’ H

HANARRBIBMITERREEMETR
ARSREECIOE T ZH KM
1,956,200 (ZEZT—FHWA—HZE
—FEE-F=HF=+—H:180,000
f8) - FERITEAREET 2EITHEF
BARITHREZ RREZEEHADAE
SR IRIA261,472,9558 L (ZEF
—#H#=ZRA=+—H:272,818,915/%
TC) REBEITARARSREE0 105 T
2 ¥ R% {7 45,081,544/% (—Z T ZE — 4
= A=+—H:47,037,7440%) °
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BEEEEBAZHBLRD ETR
AEEMMNEARRERERBRA
AIZEERDEEMSEMZER-

AEEEE 2
HAMNEDRE

HBHENEINAZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002

RESERVES (continued)

THE COMPANY
April 2001
Premium arising on issue

Balance at 1

of new shares
- from share subscription
- on exercise of warrants
- on exercise of share options
Expenses incurred in connection
with issue of new shares
Profit for the year
Final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2001
Interim dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2002

Balance at 31 March 2002

Premium arising on issue of new
shares on exercise of warrants

Profit for the period

Final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2002

Interim dividend for the period
ended 31 December 2002

Balance at 31 December 2002

—EF-FWA—H

EoTTE_FF+-A=+—HIEEARA

30. f#fE (4
Capital Special
redemption surplus

Share reserve account Retained

premium EXEE WEI R profits Total

RAEE & g REEF &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT FHT T FHT
VNG
WZEE-FNA-BEH# 390,400 897 38,952 13,700 443,949
BIHRMD 2R E
-RERR 315,000 - - = 315,000
— T RREE 1,026 = = = 1,026
—TEEEERE 9,353 - - - 9,353
EHRH < ER

(9,391) = S = (9,391)
KEERM - - - 55,8 55,811
BEZ-TZ-F=R=1-H
IEEERERE - - - (33,052) (33,052)
BE-TZ-F-f=1-H
IEEFHHRE - - - (16,533) (16,533)
R-EE-F=-A=1+—H
e 706,388 897 38,952 19,926 766,163
RITERAREERMET
Tk 2 & E 11,150 = = = 11,150
KERRE A - - - 88,692 88,692
BHE-TZ-F-f=1-H
IEEERERE - - - (43,092) (43,092)
HE-_TZ-_§+-A=1—H
IR E R 2 - - - (21,546) (21,546)
R-ZBE-E+ZR
St-A#&% 717,538 897 38,952 43,980 801,367

The special surplus account of the Company represents

the difference between the consolidated shareholders’
funds of Jamplan (BVI) Limited and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares which were issued as

consideration for the acquisition of Jamplan (BVI) Limited
and its subsidiaries at the time of the group reorganisation

in 1993.

KA R 2R &R B f§Jamplan
(BVI) LimitedZ S A IRR E & R — N
N=F £ B E=HREWEEJamplan (BVI)
Limited R E W B2 w317 1E AW E
REZARARIROEBZEZRE-

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = ii’
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEHIE
THE GROUP
rEH
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECF —FBE_F
+=-—A=+—-8B =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TER FET
Balance at the beginning of HiF 4
the period/year 31,934 27,080
(Credit) charge for the period/year ANEAREFE (BE) i
(note 11) (KE&E11) (328) 4,854
Balance at the end of the period/year 8,/ &F &R & & 31,606 31,934
The major components of the deferred Bf 7 5k R & &
taxation provided in the financial ZIEER I
statements are attributable to the FE2RT
taxation effect of the following FrZFrol 2
timing differences: MBEE:
Excess of depreciation allowances AT & RORHE
claimed for tax purposes over Bk B
the depreciation amount charged TEGECER
in the financial statements 35,799 39,821
Taxation losses available to set-off ATAEE I A R
against future assessable profits @ N 2 B 18 &5 18 (114) (2,487)
Other timing differences Hih =& (4,079) (5,400)
31,606 31,934

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

31.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Surpluses or deficits arising on valuation of investment
properties in Hong Kong do not constitute timing
differences for deferred taxation purposes as any profits
or losses on future disposal of these properties would not

be assessable or deductible for tax purposes.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
will not dispose of its properties in the PRC in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred taxation has
been provided on any valuation surpluses or deficits
relating to properties in the PRC.

Neither the Group nor the Company had any significant
unprovided deferred taxation arising during the year or at
the balance sheet date.

31.

EEB IR (&)

EEREVEZEHBRIBEATE
EMESELEREEZE FAKY
ERESVEFSZBE/BAERY
IR A FEFOR

ARFEER R AEETRETHE
R ETREE W B
Re R ENEY EERALE RS
EEBE

o

AEERARARRAFEREZBL
BERZRABEREHREA

KBE;EH’.IE@
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 32.

During the year ended 31 March 2002, the Group acquired
57% equity interest in Techwise Circuits Company Limited
("Techwise”) and its subsidiaries (see also note 35). This
acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisition
method of accounting.

Assets (liabilities) acquired: FTEEEE (BE)
Other properties, plant and HEmmE- -HKE K
equipment B
Inventories BB
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E b AR K
and prepayments PSEENE =
Bank balances and cash WITHABR IR S
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERERR
Loans from minority shareholders —HEMRE AR D ERRE
of a subsidiary Rt z2ER
Taxation payable JE BT 1E
Net assets acquired i & E
Minority interests DER RS
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEMEE BB
Purchase consideration EERE

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

W 55 B B X F]

REBEE-_TT-_F=-A=+—AHLHF
B AEBBANEREER QA
(IBHE]) REWB AR Z57%K A
s (RKIFE35) - 2EWEEFA YK
Bt EAR.

2

1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
:g§_$ —FE—F
—EEC_F —EFE ¢
+=—HA=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET

- 130,518

- 29,339

- 216,032

- 20,640

- (141,528)

- (70,218)

- (8,576)

- 176,207

- (75,769)

- 134,126

- 234,564




For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Satisfied by:
Cash paid, including expenses
of HK$1,923,000 incurred in
connection with the acquisition
Less: Amount receivable under
warranty provisions set out
in the sale and purchase

agreement

Net consideration

Net cash outflow arising on the
acquisition:
Cash paid
Bank balances and cash acquired

Net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents

Bt %% W R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO
ENES (REKE
EEEE T

1,923,000 7T)
B BB RS RE
BRFTHEZ
FE%Z /T/\

REFHE

WEREEZRE
R
ENHRE
FrBIRITEHREEAS

RehRE
R R

FEERE

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31 March
2002 contributed HK$35,456,000 to the Group's net
operating cash inflow, HK$7,610,000 of net cash outflow
in investing activities and HK$11,699,000 of net cash
outflow in financing activities during that year.

—EF-FWA—H

32.

EoTTE_FF+-A=+—HIEEARA

W BB B B 2 B (&)

1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EE_F —ET—F
mMA—RAZ MmA—HZ=
—EECHF —FE-F
+=—BA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FH&TT

= 239,898

= (5,334)

= 234,564

= 239,898

= (20,640)

= 219,258

#@1_77_¢ BA=+—RHL#F
BEREZHEBATRZFERLIEE
Zﬁ%%%%ﬁ REe R AFREREM
35,456,000 7T R EES P R R e
i EEEA7,610,000/8 7T M B EE
HYy RoRESRDFEIR
11,699,000 JT °

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = <:’
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

33.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE

PERIOD/YEAR

Balance at 1 April 2001

Proceeds from issue of new shares
Proceeds from exercise of share
options
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Expenses incurred in connection
with issue of new shares
New loans raised
On acquisition of subsidiaries
Repayment during the year
Profit for the year attributable
to minority shareholders
Contributions from minority
shareholders
Reduction in minority interests
on acquisition of additional
interest in subsidiaries
Dividends paid to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Balance at 31 March 2002

Currency realignment

Proceeds from exercise of warrants

New loans raised

Repayment during the period

Profit for the period attributable
to minority shareholders

Contributions from minority
shareholders

Loss on deemed disposal of partial
interests in a subsidiary

Reduction in minority interests
on acquisition of additional
interest in subsidiaries

Dividends paid to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Balance at 31 December 2002

N-EL-F
MA-Rz&%
BOHRBHGERE
1B ERE
F5HE
TERRERMGHAE
BIHRHZER

MEEH
RUENER
EREN
SHBREMR
ZREREH
SERRTE

RIEEMEL
ZERMHERD &
BREm

MABLREDH
x%&?ﬁ%

AR

TERREZME KA
MEEH

HAEHR
SEBRER
2R A
LERRTE

ﬁ%ﬁ* AHEL
B ZEE
IP%WE
Z%éﬁwﬁ
SERRESR
L -PNC
BRRRER S

R-BE-£+-f
S+-Hz&H

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

33. H EARMESHIN

Obligations

Loans from under

minority finance

shareholders leases

of a and hire

Share subsidiary purchase
capital and -BKE contracts Minority
premium  Bank loans AFYHBR AERAR interests
BRAREE BTER  REER HBAORE JURRESR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$S'000
TER FET FERT TER TERT
437,618 1,055,342 - 44,045 416,803
321,000 - = - -
9,787 - - - -
1,044 = = = =
(9,391) - - - -
- 1,148,998 = = =
- - 70,218 - 75,769
- (856,680) (11,699) (33,805) -
- - - - 49,326
= - = - 2,192
- - - - (9,226)
- - - - (12,370)
760,058 1,347,660 58,519 10,240 522,494
= = = = 3,372
11,345 - = - -
= 690,062 - - -
- (382,460) (58,519) (10,240) -
- - - - 52,084
= - = - 99,403
= = = = 21,187
= - = - (55,426)
= - = - (13,761)
771,403 1,655,262 - - 629,353
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

34. UNPAID BALANCES IN RESPECT OF PROPERTY, PLANT 34. ME - BERRKRBEZRTEER

AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December 2002, an amount of HK$100,702,000 RZBE_F+_A=+—B HRX
(31.3.2002: HK$75,329,000) relating to other properties, R EFRBAZHEOYE BER
plant and equipment which were acquired during the BB 2 IEA100,702,0007% 7T

period/year had not yet been paid.

35. COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the financial
statements for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Capital expenditure authorised but
not contracted for the acquisition

of property, plant and equipment

—_EE_H=H=+—8":
75,329,000 7T) °

35. KIE
THE GROUP
rERE
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—BE-HF —EE-F
+=-—B=+—-8B =ZA=+—8”
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
HEBEME- -BE X
HEME T HERR
MBRERELBEZ
BEARTH 122,403 232,909
HBEME- -BERZE
il B #t B KRETH
ZERZT M 659,693 =
782,096 232,909

KBE;EH’.IE@
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

35.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

In connection with the Group’s acquisition of a majority
equity stake in Techwise as disclosed in note 32, the Group
has granted put options to two of the minority
shareholders. Under the put options, the Group can be
required to purchase all (but not part only) of the remaining
33% shareholding held by these two minority shareholders.
If such options were exercised, the Group’s holding in
Techwise would increase from 57% to 90%. The options
are exercisable at any time during a period of one year
commencing on 10 January 2004. The consideration
payable by the Group upon exercise of the put options
will be determined with reference to the higher of the
price/earning ratio of Techwise and its subsidiaries of the
12-month period immediately preceding the month in
which the notice of exercising the options is served at 4.5
times, and the valuation of HK$417,500,000 being the
valuation used by the Group in its acquisition of interest
in Techwise in the prior year. The consideration may be
satisfied, at the option of the Group, either by way the
cash or shares in the Company, or a mixture of both. If
shares of the Company are to be issued in satisfaction of
the consideration, the value of the Company’s shares will
be determined by reference to the weighted average price
of the Company’s shares for the 20 trading days

immediately following the date of exercise of the options.

The Company had no other significant commitments at

the balance sheet date.

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

35.

i (B)

B ENMBEBEAEEREREZKR
ZEREMS AEEZRMEDH
MR SRR T eR M B o AR IR ARV B - 3%
MELERRABRAEEBEAZD
(W IE—2B1n) BEFFH 2 HER33% K
BoWITEZEHE NEBREEZ
FHREREHRST%IEEIOY% - 7% F HI#E
AR EENF—A+THREF —FR
TE-AEBRTERGHERAES
HzREZ2ENEREMBRAR
BUHTEHEBRSZANRAACTA
R A4 5 E1E A417,500,0007 7T
(WD AEER EFEREBRBEER
FIRAZEE MERF 2R BEE
FEoANELBAIRZFURSHARQRRK
NEMERBEZEASINAIERE
MABRTARRIRGIEARE A2
AR H 2 BEBLR2EARRRRMDRIT
FHERZE20ER 5 A 2 IEF
HEEE-

RABPRAEE B IR E M E R

= ©
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

36. OPERATING LEASES 36. KEHELQ
THE GROUP
rEH
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—BR_F —ET—F
MA—BZ mMA—RBZE
—BR_F —ET-F
+=-—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TER FHET
The Group as lessee: B AN 5 B
Lease payments charged to the B/ FRNaRmRNkz
income statement during the GERSEN =N
period/year
— for premises — 7,477 5,527
— for plant and machinery — B Mg 6,310 1,494
13,787 7,021
Under the leases entered into by the Group, all lease BEAEET L 2B AERANHN
payments are fixed and predetermined. RZEBAREERBREETE-

KBz 2 ¢+ = & = CE’
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

36. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36. KEMEN (&)

At the balance sheet date, the Group's future lease REER AEBBETAHEEZ &
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are Afﬁi’]‘ﬁAElféiﬁZTﬂi’Jﬁ*”ZﬁAT

payable as follows: PIEARE X A -

THE GROUP

rEE
Premises Plant and machinery
L/ 08
31.12.2002 31.3.2002 31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EBC-F —TTF ZEBCF T F
+=ZA=t+-A8 =A=+—H t+=ZRAR=t+-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FTER FHET
Within one year R—FR 12,320 10,081 1,623 4,857
After one year but not R —F %

later than five years BRAFERA 15,850 23,350 932 =
After five years REF & 11,570 14,092 - =
39,740 47,523 2,555 4,857
The Company had no operating lease commitments under RARREEE B I & RBET AT
non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date. ﬁﬁzﬁ‘“ EHAPTABIT Z K& M4 &

= o

=

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

36. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36. KEMEN (&)
1.4.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECF —FE—F
A—BZE mA—HB=Z=
—EECF —BEC_F
+=-—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TER FHET
The Group as lessor: HAREE LA :
Rental income credited to the REFRFFARZEERZ
income statement during HeW A BRNEK
the period/year, before deduction X $464,0007% 7T
of outgoings of HK$64,000 —ETE-FMOA—H
(1.4.2001 to 31.3.2002: HK$84,000) Z_ZTT_F=H
=+—H:84,000%T) 1,812 1,727
The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside REBCREMFEHRBREEEZE
parties for periods up to three years at fixed predetermined FHSMETINAAL HEERAE=
amounts. At the balance sheet date, the Group had F-REBER AEEHEBFRIVE
contracted with tenants to receive the following future 4 DAE B Z T 5 AR A5
minimum lease payments:
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EECF —FE_F
+=—BA=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TER FET
Within one year R—FR 1,623 1,158
After one year but not later R—FBERAFA
than five years 932 289
2,555 1,447

KBz 2 ¢+ = & =
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

37. FORWARD CONTRACT COMMITMENTS 37. BHEMESHAE
THE GROUP
rEE
31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—ERCH —TE_F
+=ZA=+—-H =A=+-—H
Forward contracts held at the EERERER
balance sheet date as hedge $§'€m°¥ﬁﬁ)§
of the Group’s monetary assets BBEZERBINESH:
and liabilities:
- sale of United States dollar —HEXT US$1,000,000  US$3,200,000
- purchase of Japanese yen -HERE JPY128,600,000 JPY434,500,000
- sale of Hong Kong dollar —HEBT - HK$1,100,000
The Company had no forward contract commitments at AABREE B ETAEINES
the balance sheet date. 4
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. HAREE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE b /N
31.12.2002 31.3.2002 31.12.2002 31.3.2002
—EBCF —TT_F —ERCH —BE_F
+=-B=+-H =A=+—H +=ZBA=t+-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET FERT FET
(a) Extent of corporate (a) A2 &5t
guarantees given B /&8 2 A)
by the Company ZEERE
to financial ] B 7 He
institutions to BHZAA
secure credit ER
facilities for
its subsidiaries - - 2,442,861 2,024,637

[< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited




38.

39.

Bt %% W R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) During the period, the Group continued to take
legal action against customers to recover overdue
trade receivables. With regard to the three
customers which were particularly referred to in
previous years’' financial statements, and which
collectively owe approximately HK$12 million to the
Group, it is the intention of the directors that the
Group will continue vigorously to pursue the
recovery of the outstanding trade receivables and
to defend against the counter-claims, amounting
to approximately HK$9 million, which have been

lodged by the delinquent customers.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which was registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
which was established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group and are
invested in funds under the control of independent
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO
Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme are
members of both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension scheme is to make the required

contributions.

38.

39.

HREE (4)

(b) HR AEBEFERTFEHEIR
FEERTHENAHE S EKE
H-BEAREFEMERRE
ALz =REF (XHERA
& [E#712,000,00087T) » AN &
BrESRFERTRERZ
BEZRWEREERRE#ETT
BRI B - ZIBHABARNE
RZBPREZREREN KRR
TH #J3£ 9,000,000 Jt °

iR K48 R 5T &

RNEE R 2N —ER BB ERIKET
EEGIEM 2 R kT8 ([BRZER
KT &l]) RIBE RS 4 ARES KON
—ZEETF+ ARz mFIEATE
SFTE ([RBEETE]) ZEFTEZ
BEHAEB EESFRBAE MR
ERABYEAAESNZES K
MRS FTE 2 BB 2 MR IRET
Bl EERBRKABERKEI KA
BeitElzKE MABARZZEET
FH+ZASZEMAREEBZHEE
WEZMEES TS

FENBEARZEE BT EBFEE
ZEREMENRBENAEIKE -ZF
MBARAKFEXHZEX B
BARKEE U EBERN KK
BRI EI BT ZE—BEERSM
P 3K

I & H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continued)

39.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the
state-sponsored pension schemes of HK$2,079,000 (1.4.

2001 to 31.3.2002: HK$1,834,000),

net of forfeited

contributions of HK$270,000 (1.4.2001 to 31.3.2002:
HK$1,227,000), are charged to the income statement.

40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

40.

Subsequent to 31 December 2002, the equity stake of the

Group's investments in a listed industrial company

increased to more than 20%.

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

41.

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2002 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

registration
and operation

L
Name of subsidiary BER
) PNGIEE: =S
Fogang Kingboard Industry Ltd. PRC!
FEZEEXERAA RE
Guangzhou Chung Shun PRC!

Century Fibre Glass Co., Ltd. HE
BMNBEHELEREERAA
Hong Kong Copper Foil Limited British Virgin

Islands

RERZES

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERTRAR
BRAEHEE

RMB404,325,688
AR H404,325,6887T

US$12,334,303
12,334,303% T

US$47,057,290
47,057,290% 7T

RAKBAEE (&)

MBERAE BESFERER
EPMRARBMNFEZIN Z2HRA
2,079,000 L (ZEZ—F WA —H
E-ZTE_F=RF=+—8:
1,834,000/ 7T ) - B Bk )2 U fit 5K

270,000 c (ZEZE—FMWA—HZE
—EE-_HF=H=+—H:1,227,000

o) waWERP NGk
EERREZER
R-ZEE-_F+_-_A=+—"Hz2%"
AREBR—RBETIERARMAFZR
IR 20% ©

TEMBRAAFE

ARRAETEMBRARAR _ZTZE_F+

ZA=t—BHZFHEBHT:
Proportion
of the equity
interest
held by the
Company
EAAEE Principal activities
R 7% 4 2 Lt 61 TRER
%
59.88 Manufacture of
copper foil
BUERE

100 Manufacture of
glass yarn

HERBY
59.88 Investment holding
and trading in
copper foil

REZEBRRAEE S
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41.

Name of subsidiary

WEARAM

Hong Kong Fibre Glass
Company Limited
BEERBHERRAF

Huiyang Techwise Circuits
Co., Ltd.
EGMEERERAA

Huiyang Techwise Industrial
Technology Co., Ltd.

BEEHEIEMRAERARA

Jamplan (BVI) Limited

Jamplan Marketing Limited
REEZERLA

Jiangmen Kingboard Chemical

Co., Ltd.
IMRBLEIARAR

King Board (Panyu) Chemical

Co., Ltd.
BE(EB)LIERARA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
TR
BER
EEE

Hong Kong/
PRC
BE/HE

PRC !
HE

PRC !
HE

British Virgin
Islands#
RBRAHEH

Hong Kong
Bk

PRC ?

FE?

PRC
RE

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERITRAR
B E

HK$2
2T

HK$80,000,000
80,000,000 7T

HK$28,000,000
28,000,000/ 7T

Us$1,000
1,000% 7T

HK$2
2T
RMB7,000,000

AR #7,000,0007T

HK$100,000,000
100,000,000 7T

FTEMBRAFE (&)

Proportion
of the equity
interest

held by the
Company
ARAHA
PR 2N 5 B 1
%

100

57

57

100

100

80

100

KBE%&&IE@

Principal activities

TEXEHR

Manufacture of glass
fabric

RERBGED

Manufacture of printed
circuit boards

BLE EN I 4R B8 1R

Manufacture of printed
circuit boards

BLE EN I 4R B8 1R

Investment holding
REZK

Trading in laminates

BRERE S

Manufacture of
chemicals
HELCTER

Manufacture of
chemicals
HELCTER
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. TEWEB A TFHEE (&)

registration Issued and fully interest
and operation paid share capital/ held by the
HEmEL registered capital Company
Name of subsidiary BER BRITRAR EARKE Principal activities
MEASEHE B BRE/ZREX % 2% 4 2 Lt 6 TEEH
%
Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated PRC! US$1,484,903 100 Manufacture of
Material Company Limited HE 1,484,903% 7T bleached kraft paper
BE (M) BEMHBRAR SETARKR
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) PRC! HK$94,500,000 100 Manufacture of
Petrochemical Company HE 94,500,000/ 7T chemicals
Limited HETIEm
2E(BBEY) AARRA
Kingboard (Taicang) Chemical PRC ' US$2,500,000 100 Manufacture of
Co. Ltd. RE 2,500,000% 7T chemicals
BE(KB)LIBRAA HECIER
Kingboard Copper Foil Bermuda# Us$67,000,000 59.88 Investment holding
Holdings Limited BREH 67,000,000% 7T REEK
Kingboard Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$8,000 100 Investment holding
BEREBRALA N 8,000 7T REZER
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) ~ PRC ' HK$56,000,000 100 Manufacture of
Co., Ltd. A 56,000,000/ JT laminates
IFRERERERAR SEBWER
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC ' US$3,693,167 100 Manufacture of
Co., Ltd. RE 3,693,167 T laminates
BEBER (B ARAR SEBWER

Place of

incorporation/

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

Proportion

of the equity
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —#MA —AF - FEF —F+ - F=+—HIFHH

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. TEWEB A TFHEE (&)

Place of

incorporation/

Proportion

of the equity

registration Issued and fully interest
and operation paid share capital/ held by the
HEmEL registered capital Company
Name of subsidiary BER BRITRAR EARKE Principal activities
MEASEHE B BRE/ZREX % 2% 4 2 Lt 6 TEEH
%
Kingboard Laminates Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares 100 ** Manufacture and sales
BEBERERAA PRC - HK$2 of laminates
B,/ * Non-voting i RHEEBNAER
deferred shares
- HK$10,580,000
LR
—28TT
ERZRETR
—10,580,000/% 7T
Kunshan Yattao Chemical PRC ' Us$12,500,000 100 Manufacture of
Co., Ltd. HE 12,500,000 7T laminates
EWLWBABELIBRARA SLEB AR
Shanghai Jamplan Chemical PRC 2 US$1,029,000 60 Manufacture of
Industry & Insulated Material 2 1,029,000% T laminates
Development Co., Ltd. SLEB AR

TERBLCIBEMHER
BRAF

KBE;E&IE@
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For the period from 1 April 2002 to 31 December 2002 —EE —FNA—AF - FE—F+ - F=+—HIFHRH

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. FEMBRTFIE (&)
Place of Proportion
incorporation/ of the equity
registration Issued and fully interest
and operation paid share capital/ held by the
HEmEL registered capital Company
Name of subsidiary BER BRITRAR EARKE Principal activities
MEASEHE B BRE/ZREX % 2% 4 2 Lt 6 TEEH
%
Techwise Circuits Company Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 57 Investment holding
Limited BB 4,000,000 7T and distribution of
RMESKERQA printed circuit
boards
REZKRRAH

EN R 43 & AR

Techwise Shirai (Fogang) PRC ' HK$30,000,000 39.9 Manufacture of printed
Circuits Limited A 30,000,000% 7T circuit boards

MEaH (FE) SRARLA 5145 EN Rl 43 BE AR

Techwise Shirai Circuits Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 39.9 Investment holding

RER#HEEERAT B 10,000 7T REZK

Yat Tao Chemical Holdings Hong Kong US$13,100,000 100 Investment holding
(H.K.) Limited Bk 13,100,000 7T REER

BECTI&RE (FE)ERAT

@ [< B Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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41.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

* %

The Company directly holds the interest in Jamplan (BVI)
Limited. The Company’s interest in all other subsidiaries
is held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited except
for certain shares in Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited as explained in note 16.

None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard
Laminates Limited is held by the Group. The deferred
shares carry no rights to receive notice of or to attend or
vote at any general meeting of the company and have
practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any

41.

FTEMBRAFE (&)

& QB H B F B Jamplan (BVI)
LimitedZ % & ° B& I§ 55 1657 4t
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
LimitedZ & F AR5 51 - R A B R PR
EEMMBARAZERSER
Jamplan (BVI) Limited R #Z # 4 -

*x AEEYESERERERBERA
AZEREERREER D ZFREE
P b B RE R R A BT AR R
EREHIHEZERGRER T
BREDRERESRETERESD

distribution on winding up. i

# These are investment holding companies which have no # ERREERAG TEFEZ
specific principal place of operations. B B

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form 1 ILE AR TIAINE R ER A EF
of Foreign Investment Enterprises. X 37 °

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form 2 ILERRTIAPINEEEEBET

of Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally

affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors

of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the period.

W e VA

ERFAIRARBEERRIBTE
AEBXEREEZASENE A
Bl ARAREERRILEMBHER
AZHBEBAR TR

BB ARNHIMER GRS EEITE
{Al B 75 78 &5 o

KBE;E&IE@




